
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
FOREST AND BEACH COMMISSION 

MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, December 10, 2015 
Tour of Inspection – 2:30 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 3:30 p.m. 

 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

East side of Monte Verde St. between Ocean & 7th Avenues 
Carmel, California 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS:   DAVID REFUERZO – CHAIR 

KAREN FERLITO – VICE CHAIR 
KATHY BANG 
JEFF BARON 
MAGGIE EATON 

 
TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 2:30 p.m., the Commission will leave the Council Chambers for an on-site Tour of 
Inspection of all properties listed on this agenda. The Tour may also include projects previously 
approved by the City and not on this agenda. Prior to the beginning of the Tour of Inspection, the 
Commission may eliminate one or more on-site visits. The public is welcome to follow the 
Commission on its tour of the determined sites. The Commission will return to the Council 
Chambers at 3:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible.       
 

1. NE Guadalupe St. and 2nd Ave. 
2. SW Monte Verde St. and 2nd Ave. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
INTRODUCTION OF PUBLIC WORKS STAFF 
 
Jesse Garibay, Streets Supervisor 
Jaime Aquino, Senior Maintenance Worker - Mason 
 
APPEARANCES 
 
Thank you for attending the meeting.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission on matters not on 
the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Commission, may do so now.  Please state the matter 
on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Commission’s agenda will not receive 
action at this meeting but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  Presentations will be limited 
to three minutes, or as established by the Commission. Persons are not required to give their name 
or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may identify 
them.  
 

1



 
Forest and Beach Commission Agenda 

December 10, 2015 
Page 2 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the Minutes for the November 12, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2. Consideration of an application to remove a 20” diameter coast redwood tree on City 
property due to damage to a driveway and the street adjacent to the tree. The tree is 
located in front of the home at the northwest corner of Guadalupe St. and Second Ave. 
The applicant is Dieter Back, and the owner is the City of Carmel. 

 
3. Consideration of an application to remove a 40” diameter Monterey pine on City property 

due to concerns of damage to a retaining wall and threat to adjacent homes. The tree is 
located in front of the home at the southwest corner of Monte Verde St. and Second Ave. 
The applicant is Michael Phillips, and the owner is the City of Carmel. 

 
ORDERS OF BUSINESS 
 

4. Report on the Status of the North Dunes Habitat Restoration Project  
 

5. Verbal report from the Centennial ad hoc committees 
 

6.  Review and Adopt the Regular Meeting Calendar for 2016 
 

REPORTS FROM STAFF AND COMMISSIONERS  
 

7. City Forester’s Report  
A. November tree data 
B. Parks activities 
C. Beach activities 
D. Future agenda items 

 
8. Public Works Director’s Report 

A. Updates on City Council and Planning Commission Items 
B. Other Items of Interest to the Commission 

 
9. Commissioner Announcements 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Forest and Beach Commission regarding 
any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building 
Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal 
business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Forest and Beach Commission will be: 

January 14, 2016  
Tour of Inspection – as required 

3:30 p.m. – Regular Agenda 
 

2



3



Forest and Beach Commission – Minutes 
November 12, 2015 

1 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
FOREST AND BEACH COMMISSION - MINUTES 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
  
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Jeff Baron 
      Michael Carter 
      Karen Ferlito – Vice Chair 
      David Refuerzo – Chair 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT: Kathy Bang 
 
STAFF PRESENT:    Rob Mullane, AICP, Public Works Director 

Mike Branson, City Forester 
Matt Feisthamel, Assistant City Forester 
Marc Wiener, Acting Community Planning &  
                       Building Director 

      Kelley Green, Tree Care Specialist 
      Michael Feher, Maintenance Worker 
      Leslie Fenton, Executive Assistant 
 
 
PLEGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Members of the audience joined the Commission in a Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF FOREST, PARKS, AND BEACH STAFF 
 
Mike Branson, City Forester, introduced Tree Care Specialist Kelley Green and Maintenance 
Worker Michael Feher. 
 
Commissioner Ferlito thanked the staff for the assistance with the Arbor Day Event. 
 
APPEARANCES 
 
Jeanne McCulloch appeared before the Commission to speak against the Nuisance Ordinance 
passed by the City Council.  She would rather see a limit on the number of fires allowed and 
citations for violators. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1.  Consideration of the minutes for the October 8, 2015 Regular meeting. 
 
Commissioner Ferlito noted that a couple of typos need to be addressed. Staff will correct these.  

4



Forest and Beach Commission – Minutes 
November 12, 2015 

2 
 

 
Commissioner BARON moved to approve the minutes for the October 8, 2015 Regular 
meeting, seconded by EATON and carried by the following roll call vote: 

AYES:  Baron, Eaton, Ferlito  
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: Refuerzo 
ABSENT: Bang 

 
ORDERS OF BUSINESS 
 
The Chair announced that he would be reordering the agenda items to better accommodate 
speakers in the audience. The items under Orders of Business would have the following order:  
#5, #4, #2, #3 and #6. The Commission had no objections. 
 
5. Receive a Report from the Friends of Carmel Forest on their Carmel Centennial Project. 
 
 Maria Sutherland from Friends of Carmel Forest presented the group’s 2016 Carmel 

Centennial idea “Centennial Trees – A Celebration of Carmel’s Forest.”  They will be 
creating a private fund and gathering donations to assist in sustaining Carmel’s Forest; 
goal of planting 100 trees; several donation levels with specific benefits at each level with 
plantings to begin in January 2016.  The group will meet with Mr. Branson to discuss 
best locations for plantings on public property. 

 
 Chair Refuerzo opened the item to public comment at 4:02 p.m.  Kelley Green, Tree Care 

Specialist, spoke about the planting of trees on public property, and Matt Feisthamel, 
Assistant City Forester, spoke about the possibility of Friends of Carmel Forest 
contracting with a company to water all of these new trees.  There being no other 
appearances, the item was closed at 4:03 p.m. 

 
4. Discussion of Commission Projects to Celebrate Carmel’s Centennial. 
 
 Mr. Branson presented the staff report.   
 
 Chair Refuerzo opened the item to public comment at 4:29 p.m.  There being no 

appearances, the item was closed at 4:29 p.m. 
 
 Chair Refuerzo announced his appointment of Commissioners Ferlito and Baron to an 

Ad-Hoc Committee to look at the restoration scope and design for four segments of 
landscaping along the Scenic Road Pathway. 

 
 Chair Refuerzo announced his appointment of Commissioners Eaton and Refuerzo to and 

Ad-Hoc Committee to look at the replacement of the Carmel Holiday tree at Junipero and 
Ocean Avenues. 

 
2. Provide input on the Permit Standards for Installation of Artificial Turf in Carmel. 
  

5



Forest and Beach Commission – Minutes 
November 12, 2015 

3 
 

 Marc Wiener, Acting Community Planning and Building Director, presented the staff 
report and discussed the “Permitting Standards for Synthetic Grass/Artificial Turf.” 

 
 Chair Refuerzo opened the item to public comment at 4:53 p.m.   

Speaker #1: Maria Sutherland spoke about material specifications for artificial turf that 
should be considered.   
There being no other appearances, the item was closed at 4:54 p.m. 

 
 Chair Refuerzo asked each Commissioner to give their comments on the proposed 

standards. 
 
 Commissioner Ferlito: 
  - Look at cities of Glendale and Beverly Hills for policy examples 
 
 Commissioner Eaton:  
  - Educational opportunity for alternatives 
  - Explain why restrictions are in place 
  - Residents should be required to maintain the turf 
  - Drainage standards 
  - Greenest alternative should be used, environmentally-sensitive product 
  - Protect trees 

- Need to follow-up after installation and periodic checks to see how turf is 
holding up to the elements 

 
 Commissioner Baron: 
  - Standards look good 
  - Design Guidelines prohibit artificial turf in any visible space 
  - Turf and base material should be permeable 
  - Prohibit materials that are damaging to Monterey Bay 
 
 Commissioner Refuerzo: 
  - Green alternatives 
  - Site coverage standard should be applied where usable 
 
3. Provide Recommendations on Priorities for Implementation of the Shoreline Assessment 

Report. 
 
 Mike Branson, City Forester, presented the staff report. 
 
 Chair Refuerzo opened the item to public comment at 5:46 p.m.   

Speaker #1: Skip Lloyd, of Friends of Mission Trail Nature Preserve (FoMTNP), stated 
that the Marshall Plan funds should be used to bring the invasive plant removal funds 
back to the original amount and to cover any budget overages on the Mission Trail 
Nature Preserve (MTNP) Mountain View Entrance project.   
There being no other appearances, the item was closed at 5:51 pm. 

 

6



Forest and Beach Commission – Minutes 
November 12, 2015 

4 
 

 Chair Refuerzo asked the Commissioners to prioritize the Shoreline Assessment 
Implementation projects on a scale of 1-3, with the results noted as follows: 

 
 ITEM EATON BARON FERLITO REFUERZO 

Landscape Barriers 2 1 1 1 
Landscape 
Renovation/Bluff 
Cuts 

3 3 1 1 

Stairway 
Renovation/Repairs 

1 1 1 2 

Pathway Renovation 2 2 2 2 
Sand Redistribution 3 2 2 1 
Beach Profiles 3 3 2 3 
Repair and 
Maintenance of 
Shoreline Structures 

1 2 1 2 

Storm Water 
Infrastructure 
Maintenance/Repair 

2 3 2 3 

Forest Enhancement 1 2 1 1 
Mission Trail Nature 
Preserve 

2 1 1 2 

 
6. Review and Comment on the Department Work Plan for 2016. 
 
 Rob Mullane, Public Works Director, presented the staff report.   
 
 Chair Refuerzo opened the item to public comment at 7:07 p.m.   

Speaker #1: Skip Lloyd stated that Public Works staff have been working with FoMTNP 
to clean-up debris; Mountain View entrance to MTNP should be moved up in priority; 
and he would like staff to provide a list of projects for which the FoMTNP could raise 
funds.   
There being no other appearances, the item was closed at 7:12 pm. 
 
The Commission was complimentary of the work plan and the projects that staff 
undertook in 2015, and the projects identified for future implementation. 

  
REPORTS FROM STAFF AND COMMISSIONERS 
 
7. City Forester’s Report 
 
 A. October tree data 
  - 31 trees removed 
  

7



Forest and Beach Commission – Minutes 
November 12, 2015 

5 
 

 
 B. Parks Activities 

- Large eucalyptus tree at the Northwest Corner of Ocean and San Antonion was 
recently pruned, with a very good result 

  - Dead trees in MTNP have been removed 
 
 
 C. Beach Activities 

- Sand redistribution was recently completed for safety and access concerns at Del 
Mar, 8th & 9th stairways, and the sand ramp. 

  - Signs and barriers for beach no-fire zones continue to be checked on a regular  
    basis 
 
Commissioner Baron left the meeting at 7:17 pm. 
 
8. Public Works Director’s Report 
 
 A. Verbal update on the status of the Beach Fire Management 
  - The Police Department reported that there were no fires over the Veteran’s Day  
    holiday. 

- Staff is working with Coastal Commission on a revised pilot beach fires 
management program that will have propane fires only. 

  - Beach fire issue to be heard at December Coastal Commission meeting, tentative 
    dates are December 9, 10, and 11.  Staff will keep Commission updated. 
 
 B. Updates on City Council and Planning Commission Items 
  - November City Council meeting – 1st Reading of Ordinance – wood fires on  
               beach a nuisance per Title 8 Health & Safety 
  - Resignation of City Administrator Doug Schmitz and appointment of Chief  
    Mike Calhoun as Interim City Administrator. 
  - Downtown smoking ban item continued to a future meeting. 
  - Carmel Sand project appeal heard and continued to a future meeting. 
 
 C. Other items of interest to the Commission 
  - Public Works employee Jesse Garibay has been promoted to Street Supervisor. 
  - Commissioner training tentatively scheduled for January 
 

Chair Refuerzo opened the item to public comment at 7:34 p.m.   
Speaker #1: Skip Lloyd stated that Public Works and Forestry are dealing with now are 
items that have been delayed in the past and passed along his thanks to Mike and other 
staff for their support.   
There being no other appearances, the item was closed at 7:35 pm. 

 
Due to the possible conflict between the December 10th Forest & Beach Commission Regular 
Meeting and the Coastal Commission Meeting to discuss beach fires. The Commission chose 

8



Forest and Beach Commission – Minutes 
November 12, 2015 

6 
 

December 17, 2015 at 3:30 pm as an alternative meeting date.  Staff will keep the Commission 
members apprised of the Coastal Commission meeting agenda. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 
7:40 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Leslie Fenton, Executive Assistant 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Refuerzo, Chair     

                      
 

 

9



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Forest and Beach Commission Report 

December 10, 2015 

To: Chair Refuerzo and Forest & Beach Commissioners 

From: Mike Branson, City Forester 

Subject: Tree Removal (Public) 
Block:  16;  Lots:  parts of 17 & 19 
NW Corner of Guadalupe St. and 2nd Ave.  (on Guadalupe frontage) 
Applicant: Dieter Back 
Owner: City of Carmel 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Site Condition: 

The site for this application is within the public right-of- way adjacent to the driveway of the 
applicant’s property on Guadalupe St. The redwood tree is growing in a relatively small open 
space that is surrounded by pavement. The street has a slight slope to the south, and there is a 
lifting of the pavement that is most likely due to tree roots. The driveway appears to be lifted 
about 3 inches above the adjacent asphalt driveway apron and street. There is a large surface 
root that is growing in the direction of the driveway, but no roots are visible in the area that is 
being lifted. Another large root is growing toward the neighboring driveway to the north, but 
no structural damage is apparent. The applicant has indicated that the lifting is causing water to 
be directed into his garage rather that down the street. 

Size and species of trees(s) requested for removal/pruning: 

Remove one coast redwood (20”) in the public right-of-way. 

Health and condition of tree requested for removal: 

The tree appears to be in good overall condition without any significant insect, disease, or 
structural problems. There are several surface roots that are visible around the area where the 
tree is growing. 

Previous requests and decisions: 

None. 

Reason for request and Description of Project: 

The applicant is concerned about the tree roots lifting his driveway and the street. 

10



The importance of the tree(s) to the urban forest in the area: 

The tree contributes to the upper canopy of the forest for this neighborhood.  

Size and species of tree(s) that are to be preserved: 

N/A 

Impacts construction may have on trees that are to be preserved and suggested mitigation: 

N/A 

Options: 

1. Approve the application.
2. Do not approve the application.
3. Postpone consideration.

Staff Recommendations: 

Option #2.  Do not approve the application.  The tree is in good health and condition at this 
time. I recommend the applicant repair his driveway and allow staff to assess any tree roots 
that may be causing any problems to the property. It is possible that judicious root pruning can 
resolve the current and potential future damage. The City will repair the root damage to the 
street in the future. 

If the application is approved, I recommend the applicant plant a new 15-gallon lower canopy in 
the same area as the current tree, with the City making some improvements to allow a better 
growing site for a tree, and plant a new 5-gallon upper canopy tree south of the driveway in a 
new tree planting space. 

Attachment 

1. Tree Removal Permit Application for Back

11



12

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



13

mbranson
Typewritten Text

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



  
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Forest and Beach Commission Report 

December 10, 2015 

 
To: Chair Refuerzo and Forest & Beach Commissioners 

From: Mike Branson, City Forester 

Subject: Tree Removal (Public) 
  Block:  II;  Lot:  40 
  SW  corner of Monte Verde St. and 2nd Ave.  (on Monte Verde) 
  Applicant:  Michael Phillips 

Owner: City of Carmel 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Site Condition: 
 
The site for this application is within the public right-of- way adjacent to the applicant’s 
property on Monte Verde St. The 40” diameter Monterey pine tree is growing in a relatively 
narrow, 7-foot wide open space that is parallel and basically level with the street, but about 4 
feet above the level of the applicant’s house. The base of the east side of the tree is about 2-3 
feet from the top edge of a 4-foot high Carmel stone wall. The house is about 6 feet from the 
base of the tree with a pathway along the house and the 4-foot tall Carmel stone retaining wall 
between the tree and the pathway. The wall turns and terminates at the southern edge of 
wood steps that connect the street to the house. There are many visible cracks in the stone wall 
near where the tree is and farther away from the tree. On the north side of the steps there is an 
old pine stump about 33 inches in diameter. 
 
Size and species of trees(s) requested for removal/pruning: 
 
Remove one Monterey pine (40”) in the public right-of-way. 
 
Health and condition of tree requested for removal: 
 
The tree appears to be in good overall condition without any significant insect, disease, or 
structural problems. The trunk has a slight lean to the southeast, and most of the tree canopy 
originates from the south and east side of the tree trunk. The lack of canopy on the north side 
of the trunk may be due to former competition for growing space with the tree that is now a 
stump. 
 
Previous requests and decisions:  
 
None. 
 
  

14



Reason for request and Description of Project: 
 
The applicant is concerned about safety issues regarding the retaining wall, and with a possible 
risk to the neighboring homes. 
 
The importance of the tree(s) to the urban forest in the area: 
 
The tree contributes to the upper canopy of the forest for this neighborhood.  
 
Size and species of tree(s) that are to be preserved: 
 
N/A 
 
Impacts construction may have on trees that are to be preserved and suggested mitigation: 
 
N/A 
 
Options: 
 

1. Approve the application. 
2. Do not approve the application. 
3. Postpone consideration. 

 
Staff Recommendations: 
 
Option #2.  Do not approve the application.  The tree is in good health and condition at this 
time. I recommend staff continue to monitor the tree to assess any issues that may be causing 
any problems to the property.   
 
If the tree is approved for removal, I recommend the applicant plant a new 5-gallon upper 
canopy tree in the public right-of-way in the general vicinity of the applicant’s property.  
 
 
Attachment 
 

1. Tree Removal Permit Application for Phillips 

15



16

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



17

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



  
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Forest and Beach Commission Report 

December 10, 2015 

 
To: Chair Refuerzo and Forest & Beach Commissioners 

From: Mike Branson, City Forester 

Subject: One-year status report on the North Dunes Habitat Restoration Project 
 
 
The Del Mar Master Plan was adopted by the City in September 2009, and certified by the 
California Coastal Commission in January 2010. Included in the Master Plan is the North Dunes 
Habitat Restoration Plan, which describes the dune environment and includes implementation 
measures to restore, enhance, and protect the dune habitat of the North Dunes area of Carmel 
Beach. The City has a five-year contract with Native Solutions for implementation of the habitat 
restoration plan. 
 
Native Solutions has provided a year-one progress report for review by the Commission. Joey 
Canepa, the owner of Native Solutions, will attend the meeting and be available to answer any 
questions about the project’s progress so far as well as anticipated next steps. 
 
Also attached is a November 2, 2015 staff report prepared for the City Council by Executive 
Assistant Leslie Fenton on the issue of revisions to the North Dunes Habitat Restoration Plan 
and related Commission and Council reviews and actions. The main focus of the report was the 
issue of tree management in the North Dunes. This report was part of the Council’s consent 
agenda, and there was no discussion of the item. 
 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Native Solutions year-one progress report 
2. November 2, 2015 North Dunes Habitat Restoration Plan report to the City Council 

18



19

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



20

mbranson
Typewritten Text

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



21

mbranson
Typewritten Text

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



22

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



23

mbranson
Typewritten Text

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1

mbranson
Typewritten Text



24

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



25

mbranson
Typewritten Text

mbranson
Typewritten Text

mbranson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Forest and Beach Commission Report 

December 10, 2015 

 
To: Chair Refuerzo and Forest & Beach Commissioners 

From: Mike Branson, City Forester 

Subject: 2016 Meeting Calendar 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff has drafted proposed regular meeting dates for 2016 and acknowledges that 
modifications may be made during the year as necessary. 
 
2016 PROPOSED FOREST AND BEACH COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING CALENDAR:  
 
 January 14th  

February 11th  
March 10th   
April 14th       
May 12th        
June 9th      
July 14th       
August 11th       
September 8th       
October 13th      
November 10th       
December 8th           

  
If you are unable to attend any of the scheduled meetings, please advise the Commission 
Secretary well in advance of your absence.   
 

26



Item 7A

27


	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	TOUR OF INSPECTION
	ROLL CALL
	APPEARANCES
	CONSENT AGENDA




